ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 4, 2014
9:01 a.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS
Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Ws Keller, Vice Chair
Representative Lynn Gattis
Representati ve Shel |l ey Hughes
Represent ati ve Doug | saacson
Representative Charisse MIlett
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss-Tonki ns

SENATE STATE AFFAI RS
Senat or Fred Dyson, Chair
Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senat or John Coghi Il |
Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT

HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS
Al |l House nenbers present

SENATE STATE AFFAI RS
Senator Bert Stednan

COW TTEE CALENDAR

ALASKA ARCTI C POLI CY COW SSI ON PRELI M NARY REPCORT PRESENTATI ON

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BOB HERRON

JT. H'S STA COMW TTEES -1- February 4, 2014



Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave the Alaska Arctic Policy Conm ssion
Prelimnary Report Presentation as co-chair of the comm ssion.

SENATOR LEI SL McGUI RE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave the Alaska Arctic Policy Conm ssion
Prelimnary Report Presentation, as co-chair of the conmm ssion.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
9:01: 18 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the joint neeting of the Senate and Senate
State Affairs Standing Commttees to order at 9:01 am

Representatives Keller, Gattis, | saacson, Hughes, Krei ss-
Tonkins, and Lynn, and Senators Coghill, G essel, Welechowski,
and Dyson were present at the call to order. Representative

MIllett arrived as the neeting was in progress.
9:01: 20 AM

CHAI R LYNN handed the gavel over to Chair Dyson.
9:02: 07 AM

Al aska Arctic Policy Conm ssion Prelimnary Report Presentation

CHAI R DYSON announced that the only order of business was the
Al aska Arctic Policy Comm ssion Prelimnary Report Presentation.

9:02: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BOB HERRON, Al aska State Legislature, reported
that as required by [the resolution adopted by the Al aska State
Legislature in April 2012, which established the Al aska Arctic
Policy Comm ssion] the comm ssion delivered its full prelimnary
report by January 30, 2014, and delivered to all legislators the
commi ssion's executive summary on February 3, 2014. He said
there has been a flood of reports, including the National
Strategy for the Arctic Region, issued early in 2013, and the
i npl enentation plan for that strategy was supposed to reveal ed
i n Septenber; however, the comm ssion provided its thoughts and
information to the Wite House, and the adm nistration pushed
back the reveal to Novenber, then to Decenber, then to the sane

JT. H'S STA COMW TTEES - 2- February 4, 2014



day Al aska issued its prelimnary report. He characterized that
as "a good sequence of events.” He explained that both he and
Senator McQ@uire think that the conm ssion had an inpact on [the
adm nistration's] report and inplenentation plan.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON opi ned that the |egislature needs to have
an Arctic footing and work with its federal counterparts and the
governor, who is in the branch nost responsible for having a

working relationship with the federal governnent. He said
Al aska holds the purse strings and wites the laws, and it needs
to understand how it can best protect 1its interest to

international and federal governnments in the Arctic.
9:05: 20 AM

SENATOR LEISL McGUIRE, Al aska State Legislature, said whenever
the state works on issues of sovereignty, it needs to be carefu

not to send m xed nessages. She said the governor's team was at
the table. She said there were five Senators and five
Representatives involved, including Senator Cathy Geisel who was
present today, who worked alongside public nenbers who were
subject matter experts who had been appointed by the Speaker of
the House and the Senate President and brought strong views to
the table, ranging from environnental protection to pro-

devel opnent . Topics were run through the admnistration and
respective agencies to find out where policy had already been
established and where there were gaps. She stated that the

crowning achi evenent was working alongside the federal
gover nnent .

9:07: 20 AM

SENATOR McGUI RE stated that one of the best ways to work with
the federal governnment is to figure out where it is going. She
said the comm ssion figured out in March [2013], during neetings
in Washington, D.C., that the GCbama Adm nistration was already
on an aggressive pace in terns of Arctic strategy. In Iight of
that, she said, the conmssion was able to get the federal
government to listen and join conm ssion neetings, in person in
Unal aska and by phone in Barrow. At the latter neeting, she
said, she conpared the Canadian policy and an initial draft of
the strategic report, and she nentioned references to climte

wi t hout nention of the hunman beings invol ved. Conversely, in
the Arctic report, many references were nmade to the hunman bei ngs
that lived on the land and their interrelationship wth that

climate. The change in ice is paranount in the Arctic, because
it brings both opportunities and chall enges.

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES - 3- February 4, 2014



9:09:48 AM

SENATOR MCGUI RE said she and Representative Herron woul d present

slides to the conmttee. She naned the followng web site:
akarctic.com She explained that what was being presented to
the commttee was the prelimnary draft. She relayed there were
16 policy recommendations and four vision statenents, and there
is still alot of work to do, primarily in the area of state and
national security and spill prevention and response. She said
those two issues "cane to us a little bit later" and are
"“cunbersone,” but the commssion's teans are addressing them

Senator McGQuire remnded the conmttee that the conm ssion was
created by the legislature, thus is a reflection of its thoughts
and i deas. She encouraged feedback over the next year, noting
that the final report will be issued on January 30, 2015.

9:11: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON directed attention to the cover of the
executive summary, which shows two photos. He described the
upper photo as "a polar star canmera view" He said Al aska,
bet ween Canada and Russia, is small, but plays a key role. He
said the bottom photo is "Alaska looking to the Arctic, |ooking
to the future."

9:12: 07 AM

CHAIR DYSON offered his understanding that during the H ckel
adm nistration, an organization naned, Northern Forum was
formed, and he observed that he has not seen that organization
listed.

9:12: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON responded that the conmm ssion discussed
Northern Forum at its Decenber neeting in Anchorage, and
[ comm ssion nenber] N ls Andreassen said the organization has
"sort of gone into dormant node." He said people are talking
about bringing it back; but that idea has not gained traction.

9:12: 50 AM
CHAI R DYSON recollected that in the past, the entity was busy;
it had several international conferences and lots of work wth

both the Canadians and the Russians. He expressed surprise to
find out it had atrophied.

JT. H'S STA COMW TTEES -4- February 4, 2014



9:13:11 AM

SENATOR MCGQUI RE said sonmeone who has spoken a |ot about this
issue is Lieutenant Governor Mead Treadwell. A thought is that
if the Northern Forumis going to be restarted, then its m ssion
shoul d be reinvigorated. Currently, part of Northern Forums
m ssion exists with the Institute of the North, but the m ssing
link is wth Russia. She said this issue has also been
di scussed in Senate neetings. She said the population of the
Arctic is 4 million, 2 mllion of which are Russian. She said
that in the past, many trade m ssions took place with Sakhalin
and Khabarovsk, and she enphasized the inportance of resum ng
them on the local level, even if federal strategy is failing
wi t h Russi a.

SENATOR MCGUIRE, in response to Chair Dyson, nentioned the
Arctic | rperative, a pro-devel opnent group in @G rdwood
conprising 300 people at its inception and increasing to over
1,000 people during its three year existence; however, she
ventured the chair was thinking about two quasi-state entities,
whi ch receive state funding: Northern Forum and the Institute
of the North.

CHAI R DYSON said while he appreciates what had been said about
invigorating the mssion, it seens "that organization"” has done
a lot of work, and the legislature should find out what that
work is and build upon it.

SENATOR MCGUI RE concurr ed.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said there should be a reference to it for
hi stori cal val ue.

9:15: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES noted that she had read nost of the report
and is "excited about the potential." She said she sees the
work of the Arctic Council as pivotal. She expressed

appreciation for the work that is being done. She said it would
be helpful if the report included a description of the groups

as well as list their nenbership, status, and cooperative work.
She stated appreciation for the commssion's timng and its
timely work with the federal governnent.

9:17:18 AM

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES - 5- February 4, 2014



SENATOR MCGUI RE said nost of the groups are federally created,

and she posited that that distinction should be made. She
i ndi cated one question is: "How do we insert ourselves in at
the state |evel?" She nentioned another group, the Pacific
Nort hwest Econom ¢ Region (PNVER) Arctic Caucus, which was in
recognition that at the provincial, territorial, and state
| evel s, Canada and Al aska are not being heard enough. She

expressed thanks for the late Governor Hickel for his vision

and expressed appreciation for Li eut enant Gover nor Mead
Treadwel| and [forner state Senate President] Drue Pearce who
canme before the commssion and did a ot of work on this issue,
whi ch she said people were not always interested in discussing,
even a coupl e years ago.

9:19:10 AM

SENATOR MCGUI RE directed attention to the slide presentation, to
two slides showing that there are 4 mllion people living in the
Arctic and the division between the Russian, European, and
American Arctic.

9:19: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON explained the next slide showing the
[covers of] the many reports issued by the federal governnent
over the l|ast year. She said the newest report is by the
Department of Defense (DoD) in Novenber 2013, which is what the
comm ssion is going to address this year for the final report.
He turned to the next slide entitled, "U'S. National Strategy
for the Arctic Region.” He said that entity wants to advance
its security interests, pursue responsible Arctic Region
stewar dshi p, and strengthen international cooperation. He said
the comm ssion opines that those "lines of efforts" seem "a
little too high level" and do not consider responsible
devel opnent that protects and sustains northern comunities.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON directed attention to the next slide,
entitled, "Arctic Council Chair," which shows a tineline. He
said this spring and summer, the federal government is going to
[hold] "listening sessions” in Alaska to talk to as nany people
as possible. Next fall, he said, the federal government will
finalize its chairmanship thenmes and go to the other seven
Arctic states and negotiate the thenes so that there is "buy-

in." He stated that the chairmanship for the Arctic Council is
"going very, very quickly." He said the next slide shows
"Permanent Participants of the Arctic Council,” and he noted

that four of the participants are indigenous Alaskan groups:

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES - 6- February 4, 2014



the [Al eut | nt er nat i onal Associ ati on] (AlA), the J[Arctic
At habaskan Council] (AAC), the [Gamch'in Council International]
(G&Cl), and [l nuit C rcunpol ar Conference] (ICO.

9:21: 50 AM

SENATOR MCGU RE directed attention to a slide showing the
"Alaska Arctic Policy Comm ssion" has 26 nenbers, conposed of
five Senators, five Representatives, one executive branch nenber
appoi nted by the governor, and fifteen nenbers appointed jointly
by the Senate President and Speaker of the House; the slide
lists the industries fromwhich those fifteen menbers cone. She
reiterated the commssion's interaction wth the federal
governnment, adding that she and Representative Herron have had
weekly conversations wth representatives of the Cbama
Adm ni stration

SENATOR MCGUI RE turned to the slide entitled, "AAPC Letter of

Intent,” and she noted there are eight areas of consideration
l'isted: | ndi genous Perspectives and Priorities; governance;
Ol, Gas, and Mneral Exploration and Devel opnent; Science and
Research; Energy; Planning & Infrastructure; Security & Marine
Transportation; and Fisheries. She encouraged the joint
conmittee nenbers to let the conm ssion know if there should be
any further considerations added. Senator MQuire directed

attention to a slide showi ng the commi ssion's vision statenents.
9:23:09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON paraphrased the vision statenments, which
r ead: "Val ues community sustainability and thriving cul tures”
"Ensures public safety and security"”; "Advances econom c
development and a healthy environnment”; and "Incorporates
transparency and inclusion into decision making."

SENATOR MCGQUI RE noted that depicted in the lower [right] corner
of the slide is Edward Saggan Itta, former mayor of the North
Sl ope Borough, during a portion a neeting set aside to listen to
the | ocal people.

9:24:10 AM
CHAIR DYSON referred to Representative Herron's nmention of
public safety, and he asked if the term is being used in the

vision statenent in connection wth cross-border terrorist
activity or transportation safety.

JT. H'S STA COMW TTEES -7 February 4, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON answered all of the above.

SENATOR MCGUI RE added that the group is expanding its m ssion
and the governor is placing a heavy enphasis on honeland
security. She said, "That part was added in vis-a-vis our
i nternational neighbors.” She stated, "But this particular
group: public safety with respect to marine traffic.” She
menti oned the need for search and rescue response and a presence
built up to the population increases. In response to Chair
Dyson, she said air traffic is also a consideration

9: 25: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON directed attention to the next slide
entitled, "Strategic Reconmendations.” He listed the categories
and respective |eaders: Governance and | ndi genous Perspectives

- Senators Stevens and Hoffman; Science and Research -
Representati ves Edgnon and Kerttula; Planning and Infrastructure
and WIldlife - Representative Neuman; GO1l, Gas, and M neral
Resources and Search and Rescue/G | Pollution - Senator G essel
Security and Defense - Senators Austerman and O son; Marine
Transportation -  Senator  Austernan; Energy and Power -
Representatives Edgnon and Kerttul a; Fisheries -  Senator
Hof f man. He indicated that Representative GQuttenberg would be
t aki ng Representative Kerttula's spot.

REPRESENTATI VE = HERRON, referring to the slide entitled,
"Barrow," said public testinony |asted seven hours at the
af orenentioned neeting in the North Slope Borough, and one
opinion resulted, which was "pretty unani nobus": "The Chukchi
and the Beaufort is our garden; we would rather that the federal
government and the state work together to drain [the Arctic

National WIldlife Refuge] (ANWR) first." He directed attention
to the slide entitled, "Unalaska,"” and said it is nunber one in
the U S for seafood volume and will play a key role in the

Arctic, because it is the largest current port in Western Al aska
and key conponent to the Bering Sea.

9:27: 38 AM

SENATOR MCGUIRE said delegates from lIceland and Norway have
expressed interest in working with Alaska in having "sister port

shi ps. " She said those countries are way ahead of Alaska in
recognizing the potential for marine traffic as a result of
"these opening lanes.” She said it is nice for the conm ssion

to |l ook at how opening the Northwest Passage changes the vol une

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES - 8- February 4, 2014



that cones through the Bering Sea down into "that port." She
continued as foll ows:

| use the figure that Mayor Marquardt gave of 22 new
vessels just to support the one exploratory well of
[ Shell G Conpany], and that's not even full-stage

devel opnment, and that's not Statoil, and that's not
[ ConocoPhillips Alaska, Inc.]; and that port 1is
already full, because it's the largest fishery port on
t he earth.

9:28: 43 AM

CHAI R DYSON ventured that Senator MGuire had nmeant to infer
that nmuch of the new traffic comng through is comng from the
Nort heast Passage from Russi a. He offered his understanding
that there are unresolved issue regarding "innocent passage"” in
t he Canadi an archipelago, and there is a tacit agreenent that
Canada is not going to push to stop that traffic in areas that
they consider to be their national waters. He nmentioned "the
pi e- shaped border dispute” between the Yukon and Al aska, wherein
there is a tacit agreenent to "operate w thout that one being
resolved." He asked, "Have | got that right?"

SENATOR MCGUI RE answered yes on both counts. In response to a
foll owup question, she said she does not have a sense of the
time frane on either of those issues. She continued:

| know that [for] our Canadian friends, it's a dinner-
time conversation about ... whether they agree about
i nnocent passage or not, and |I'm just thrilled about
the agreenent to just leave ... the little pie-shaped
argunent. In fact, it's the reason that ... there was
push-back when | wanted to form the Arctic caucus to
begin with, because there was a feeling that it could
tear us apart as a group.

9:30: 12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON directed attention to the slide entitled,
"Adak," which he <characterized as "an asset the Navy |left
behi nd. " He said Chair Dyson had brought up a good issue
regarding the "Northwest" - the northern sea route. He

menti oned the 3,000-4,000 ships that go through Unimak Pass and
back down "through the chain beyond Adak." He said if Canada is
successful in either Prince Rupert or Kitinmat, those resources

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES -9- February 4, 2014



that are going west to Asia could double traffic through Uni mak
Pass - Alaska's territory - under innocent passage.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON stated that one of the nobst inportant
strategies is going to be: "How do we get beyond just voluntary
oil spill response capability in all these ships?" He opi ned
that it is in the state's best interest that ships have a
mandat ory response capacity, because 7,000 ships going through
Al aska's waters every year in the near future have a huge
potential for disaster.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON turned to the slide entitled, "Bethel,"
which he noted shows an Al aska Native wonman from Kuskokwi m in
t he background phot o. He said the Yukon and Kuskokwim Rivers -
the two major tributaries to bisect Alaska - are "very dependent
on the Bering Sea."

SENATOR MCGUIRE said the point about the potential for oil
spills from the many vessels passing through the Bering Sea was
br ought up when the conm ssion heard from Unal aska.

9:32: 23 AM

CHAIR DYSON offered an explanation about the term "innocent
passage" as foll ows:

This is a termof art in international law it's been

pl aced for [a] couple of centuries. Basically, [it]
says that the oceans of the world are the conmons of
the world, and all vessels from all nations - unless
there's been sonething specific - have the right to
i nnocent passage through the <comons - all the
maritinme corridors of the world. The discussion with
Canada is the traditional -- the best routes through
there, which are only a couple ... [through] sea ice,
are well wthin the Canadian archipelago, and so
there's question in their mnd. But innocent passage
means all kinds of commerci al [ and] recreation
[ vessel s] and everything else, as long as they're not
about bad things. ... [This is a] huge issue in the
maritime world. And if you look at international

maritinme transportation, there are a few choke points
in the wrld where that's hugely inportant who
control s those.

9:33: 36 AM

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES -10- February 4, 2014



SENATOR MCGUIRE directed attention to the slide entitled,
“"None," which she said is a hot spot where novenent in
infrastructure has begun. The federal governnment is |ooking at
both Port Clarence and Nome in its feasibility study. She said
consideration is being given to devel oping a hangar |arge enough
for WK G130 aircraft, as well as other infrastructure.

9:34:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON brought attention to the slide entitled

"Bering Strait," which he said is a key choke point, thus, is
probably the area that will receive the npst attention in the
i medi ate future

SENATOR MCGUI RE poi nted out Port Clarence and Nome on the map on
the Bering Strait slide.

9:34:40 AM

SENATOR MCGQUIRE directed attention to a slide entitled,
"Fai rbanks,"” and she relayed that the conm ssion held a neeting
there to focus on UAF as Alaska's Arctic University. She
i ndi cated the connection between northern climtes and sui cide,
al coholism and drug addiction, and stated the inportance of
studyi ng the inpacts of devel opnment in the north.

9:35:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON stated that UAF is nunmber one in the US
in Arctic research and is a nenber of the University of the
Arcti c. He enphasized, "It's inportant that a |legislature
invest in research, because we live in the Arctic."

SENATOR MCGUI RE brought attention to the slide entitled,
"Anchorage,” where the commssion heard reports from its
subcomm ttees during a two-day work session. She commended
t hose involved for their focused efforts.

9: 36: 55 AM

SENATOR COGHILL noted that while in Fairbanks, the comm ssion
had invited a lot of people to cone listen to its discussion,
but seenmed to have "lost a little bit of voice" in Anchorage,
whi ch has a | arger popul ati on.

9:37:28 AM

JT. H'S STA COMW TTEES -11- February 4, 2014



SENATOR MCGUI RE expl ai ned that by the tine the conmi ssion nmet in
Anchorage on Decenber 9-10, its focus was on bringing forward
its report to the legislature by the 12/30/13. She said she
woul d recommend hol ding a public hearing in Anchorage, Al aska.

SENATOR COGHI LL responded that he would really encourage the
commi ssion enlisting Kenai in the discussion. He said he thinks
Fai rbanks feels a part of the discussion because of the
university's role and perhaps because its Native population is
| arger. He warned against creating a divide in the state.

9:39: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said Representative Coghill nmade a good
point, but he echoed Senator MQiire's explanation that the
comm ssion had been under a tinme crunch and wanted to deliver
quality product. He said the commssion realizes that it cannot
separate the Arctic Ocean from Al aska or any part of Al aska from

itself. He said there will be dozens of snmaller neetings by
teans that will have the responsibility to reach out and gather
input from all Al askans. He said, "Too nany others are trying

to tell us how to be Al askan."”

SENATOR COGHILL opined that if Alaska is going to speak to the
federal governnent about the Arctic, it needs to do so wth a
uni fied voice. He comended the conmission for its beginning
efforts.

9:40: 37 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL remarked that the Sikuliag - the Arctic research

vessel belonging UAF harbors in Seward when it cones to Al aska
so "excluding the peninsula would be a m stake."

9:40: 59 AM

SENATOR MCCGUIRE turned to information on the next slide, which
lists "Challenges in Alaska's Arctic,” as follows: "Huge
di fferences between resource wealth and community prosperity;
| sol ated, renote communities; lack of infrastructure - energy,
transportation, t el ecommuni cati ons, etc.; Many |layers  of

ownership of land and resources; Increasingly active Arctic -
search for role, way to mtigate risk, and manage expectations."

9:41: 31 AM

JT. H'S STA COMW TTEES -12- February 4, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON indicated that the conmissions efforts
have resulted in an "Arctic Package," which includes the
follow ng |egislation: [ Conpanion bills SB 140 and HB 288],
whi ch address Arctic developnent and would allow the Al aska
| ndustrial Devel opnment and Export Authority (AIDEA) to |everage
private noney; [HB 165], which addresses Al aska Arctic ports and
devel opnment authority; and [HIR 24], relating to the "Arctic
Council,"” outlining the state's priorities to the federal
government, and pronoting the idea of having the voice of
Al askan officials heard in consideration of appointing an
i ndividual to | ead the council.

9:42: 57 AM

SENATOR MCGUIRE related that the nmedia asked her and
Representative Herron how Alaska faces an infrastructure
challenge wth a tight budget. She said the proposed
legislation related to AIDEA is nodeled on the Sustainable
Energy Transm ssion and Supply (SETS) bill that addressed energy
and liquefied natural gas (LNG trucking. She tal ked about
"deferred interest on principal ways of partnering with the
private sector.” She said the state may not be in the position
to "hand out lots of cash,"” but "these devel opnent challenges
are not going to go away." She opined that although building up
the Trans-Alaska Pipeline is inportant, the Arctic is the
econoni ¢ opportunity for future generations, which is why it is
important to invest, even in tough tines.

9:44: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER expressed appreciation to the co-chairs of
t he conm ssion for the work being done.

9:44: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON enphasi zed the many other people who have
wor ked hard, including former Lieutenant Governor Fran U nmer and
Jai me Robi nson. He said the comm ssion hired C. N koosh Carlo
Ph. D., as executive director, and she brought wth her
experience working previously in Washington, D.C

9:46: 07 AM

SENATOR MCGQUI RE t hanked Jesse Logan and Rob Earl for their hard
wor K.

9:46: 46 AM

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES -13- February 4, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT noted one thing not expressed is how far
ahead Russia is on issues of the Arctic, a point she said was
made at the Arctic Inperative. She posited that Russia is "a
force to be reckoned with." She warned against falling behind
in "the race to owmn the Arctic."”

9:47: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON recommended keeping an eye on all other
nations, and he said China, "being an observer,"” scares him nore
t han Russi a. He mentioned the interest of non-Arctic nations.
He asked Senator McCGuire and Representative Herron how they view
the building interest and convergence of other nations on an
area that has "strategic value to our long-terminterest and yet
isn't catching the popular press.” He questioned how the work
of the comm ssion mght be affected in an el ection year.

9:48: 53 AM

SENATOR MCGQUI RE responded that the commission will call on all
legislators to work as a team She said she and Representative

Herron will continue working on this issue. She stated that
there would be continued |istening sessions throughout spring
and sunmer. She recollected a tine when Secretary Salazar

visited, and she talked about finding gaps and giving the
| egi sl ature an awareness of them She said, "That helps us, as
a state, nove into this place where the United States takes the
chai rmanshi p. " She relayed that this would be only the second
time in history that the U S wIll have the chairmanship of the
Arctic Council.

9:50: 20 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL, in response to Representative |saacson's
previous comment, said both China and India have been admtted
to the Arctic Council in "permanent observer status."” She
added, "So, it is absolutely a concern; | appreciate what you
expressed. "

9:50: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said, "That is key." He said the
executive branch goes to "mnisterials" and can be on the US
del egation to the Arctic Council and wll continue to be
participants in the six working groups in the council. He said

JT. H'S STA COMW TTEES -14- February 4, 2014



the commttee work is where the real work gets done, and
Al askans can be involved in that.

9:51: 32 AM

SENATOR MCGUI RE said the conm ssion would have other docunents
for the legislature, including "the Canadian policy, the
Northern vision, and what they're doing as their chairs.” She
sai d Scandi navi an countries have hel d back to back
chai r manshi ps. She nentioned the Canadian del egation and said

she is a fan of [Canada's Prinme Mnister] Stephen Harper, who
appoi nted a Nunavut wonan, Leona Aglukkaq, as chair, which she

opi ned "says so nuch.” She said, "Their thenes are: j obs,
economic wth healthy respect for indigenous people and a
heal thy respect for the environnent. When you read that, it's
Al aska, Al aska, Al aska." She said she thinks sharing those
docunents with the legislature as a helpful tool for responding
and testifying before the groups that wll be soliciting

feedback. She indicated that she and Representative Herron have
been pushing for nore involvenent with the Canadians as an
opportunity to influence Arctic policy in North Anerica.
However, she said there are still places in the State departnent
that are still "resistant to that Canadian vision all the way."
She encouraged support of the idea, "Wuldn't it be great to
have an Al askan?" She explained that the only reason the U. S
is an Arctic nation is because of Alaska; therefore, she does
not think "that's a stretch to say that we ought to have that in
the same way that Canada has picked soneone fromthe north."

9:53: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES sai d she appreciates Canada's visions and
believes "that is an opportunity for us to extend it." She
echoed Senator MGQCuire's description of the Arctic being the
next economc frontier. She said she has hope for rural areas
struggling for healthy, working communities. She stated that
she wonders what the map of Alaska will look like in 50 years,
and opined that "we" have a great challenge to invest in the
i nfrastructure. She expressed appreciation for Representative
Coghill's comrent that this is sonething that the entire state
nmust enbrace, and she said statewide, Alaska wll be involved
with resource developnment and infrastructure issues. She
relayed that she had read that one day the northern shipping
route wll rival the Suez Canal.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES, regarding the placenment of nore Al askans
on the Arctic Council, offered her understanding that "there

JT. H'S STA COMW TTEES - 15- February 4, 2014



have been sone where we haven't had Al askans and we've had very
few " She asked if <consideration has been given to how to
ensure "people are at the table" by assisting with scheduling or
financial assistance with travel.

9:55: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON responded that there are four Al askan
groups; there are four permanent participants that go to all the
wor ki ng group neetings. The governor attends, as well. He said
the |legislature nust have an understanding of how to becone
partners with the executive branch and work with the permanent
groups - the four Alaskan indigenous groups - to have "a comon

relationship.” He said the indigenous groups have "done this
for alnmost 25 years, and "we're coming into it pretty late in
the gane." He concluded, "The executive branch is doing what it
has to do, but it has to be an expanded population that is
involved in the Arctic Council in the working groups.”

9:56: 22 AM

CHAIR DYSON asked, "Wen an international or U 'S. Executive
branch wants to know what's Alaska's position and policy on any
of these issues, who speaks for the state? Not as an advisor,
but definitively."

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON answered that it is the executive branch

which is why "we" have to have an understanding of the Arctic in
order to help the executive branch.

CHAIR DYSON offered his wunderstanding that [the 1egislature]

acts as advisor. He asked if any of the dozen groups that have
worked on Arctic policy can serve as "an efficient clearing
house for all the information, the research ... that has been

done over the |ast hundred years in the Arctic?"

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON answered that the Institute of the North
has nost base know edge.

CHAI R DYSON noted that the Alaska O and Gas Associ ati on (AOCGA)
has had an Arctic Research subcommittee and has invested
hundreds of thousands of dollars into it. He expressed his hope
that Institute of the North has at |east a directory show ng how
to get at that information

9:58: 03 AM

JT. H'S STA COW TTEES -16- February 4, 2014



ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the comnmttee, the Joint
House and Senate State Affairs Commttee neeting was adjourned
at 9:58 a.m

JT. H'S STA COMW TTEES -17- February 4, 2014



